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STATE OF MAINE REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
RFA AMENDMENT #1 and
SUBMITTED QUESTIONS & ANSWERS SUMMARY
	RFA NUMBER AND TITLE:
	202208125 - Home and Community Based Services (HCBS) Innovation Grants Funding Opportunity 

	RFA ISSUED BY:
	Department of Health and Human Services, 
Office of Aging and Disability Services

	SUBMITTED QUESTIONS DUE DATE:
	August 29, 2022, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time.

	SUBMITTED QUESTIONS #2 DUE DATE
	September 29, 2022, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time. (as amended)

	AMENDMENT AND QUESTION & ANSWER SUMMARY ISSUED:
	September 14, 2022

	PROPOSAL DUE DATE:
	November 8, 2022, no later than 11:59 p.m., local time.

	PROPOSALS DUE TO:
	Proposals@maine.gov


	Unless specifically addressed below, all other provisions and clauses of the RFA remain unchanged.

	DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES IN RFA:

1. An opportunity to provide second round of questions is added.

2. Details and Instructions, A. 3rd paragraph is revised.

3. Details and Instructions, C.1. is removed in its entirety.
4. Details and Instructions, C.2. is revised. 

5. Activities and Requirements, B.1.d. is removed in its entirety.
6. Appendix C is revised.

	REVISED LANGUAGE IN RFA:

1. A second round of questions has been added:

Submitted Questions Round #2 

All questions must be received by the RFA Coordinator identified above by:
Date: September 29, 2022 no later than 11:59 p.m., local time and must include “RFA# 202208125 Question” in the subject line of the e-mail.



	2. Details and Instructions A. 3rd paragraph is amended to read:

Through this RFA, the Department intends on providing one-time grant funding to approved Applicants for the implementation of projects which are currently outside the scope of MaineCare services, that upon successful completion, must comply with the HCBS rule Waiver Section 21 (MaineCare Manual 21.05-1), Section 29 (29.05-01), Section 19 (19.04-1 to 3), as well as Section 18 (18.05-1) and Section 20 (20.05-1), including related Office of MaineCare Services (OMS) and Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) rules and regulations. Projects may expand an existing service with new features or services to address a specific problem. Per CMS, these approved funds may be used to supplement but not supplant existing services. 

4. Details and Instructions, C.2. is amended to read:
2.
Incorporated or registered with the Maine Secretary of State and capable of doing business in the State:
a. In addition, Applicants must have two (2) years’ experience providing supports to the populations served by HCBS Waivers, specifically, Section 21 (MaineCare Manual 21.05-1), Section 29 (29.05-01), Section 19 (19.04-1 to 3), Section 18 (18.05-1) and Section 20 (20.05-1).
6. Appendix C is replaced in its entirety.

The amended Application may be obtained in a Word (.docx) format by double clicking on the document icon below.  
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Provided below are submitted written questions received and the Department’s answer.
	1
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	Can I apply for the grant on behalf of my business, if I owe personal taxes that are not on behalf of the business?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department seeks to ensure that the organization (not the individual) is current and in good standing with all Maine State payroll taxes, sales taxes, and State income taxes (as applicable) at the time of submission and has not filed for bankruptcy within the past five (5) years.


	2
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	a. I see that priority scoring will be provided for 6 different counties, does that mean the other 10 counties are ineligible for this grant?
b. Also, can I apply for this grant with a projection of staffing and clients in those 6 specific counties?

	
	Answer

	
	a. No, all counties are eligible for grant funding. 
b. Yes. 
As stated in the RFA, the Department intends to apply priority scoring for projects which provide services in under-served geographic areas, including any future, projected projects in those areas. However, the goal of the grant to promote innovation, not expansion of existing services.


	3
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	If my business is awarded the grant, is there a timeframe that the monies have to be utilized within?

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the Details and Instructions, E. Contract Terms within the RFA. 


	4
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	Is the grant taxable?

	
	Answer

	
	Applicants should consult with a tax professional to determine if the grant is taxable.


	5
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	Our organization’s service areas are Cumberland and York Counties. The app contains the following wording:

 “The Department intends to apply priority scoring for projects which provide services in under-served geographic areas, specifically Aroostook, Franklin, Hancock, Penobscot, Piscataquis, and Washington.” 

a. Does it make sense for an agency that is not in one of the priority scoring counties to submit a grant application?

b. In the past have agencies outside of the priority scoring counties received DHHS grant awards? 

	
	Answer

	
	a. Yes, refer to the answer to question 2.a. of this document. 

b. No agencies have received this type of grant funding in the past as this is the first Home and Community Based Services (HCBS) Innovation Grants Funding Opportunity issued by the Department..


	6
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	Is the below idea in alignment with the goals and objectives of the Innovation Grants Funding?

We are putting together a proposal to launch a community based state-wide inclusive dance program. This method is designed to be totally inclusive of individuals with disabilities and aims to dissolve barriers and eliminate isolation.

This organization is interested in establishing a program here in Maine.  This new program would include a network of certified teachers who would teach inclusive community classes throughout the state. We would work with agencies that are currently providers of CMS funded services to transport their consumers to attend these local classes. 

	
	Answer

	
	Yes, from this brief description, it appears that this project would align with the requirements of this grant as long as the classes include individuals with and without disabilities.


	7
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	Can an organization or individual partner with a fiscal sponsor be an applicant? 

	
	Answer

	
	Any applicant who meets the eligibility requirements outlined in the Details and Instructions, C. Eligibility will be considered for this funding opportunity.  


	8
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	General
	a. If fiscal sponsorship is permitted, does the sponsoring agency need to be a partner in the implementation of programming?

b. Or can they solely act as advisors? 

	
	Answer

	
	a. Yes.
b. No.  


	9
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Contract Period
	Please clarify the contract term options.  

a. For example, can an organization begin the contract term January of 2024? 

b. Is there a deadline as to when the funds must be used?  

c. Is there a specific period for which monitoring, measuring and reporting out results must be completed?  

	
	Answer

	
	a. The Department expects each organization funded under this grant opportunity to begin work upon execution of the contract, which may meet the January 2023 start date.

b. The initial contract will end no later than March 2024, with a possible extension until March 2025.

c. The Department expects an annual report to be complete and submitted by March 1, 2024.


	10
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section III.8.
	To clarify, can a demonstration project focus on only one of the Waiver Service populations as defined in the MaineCare Benefits Manual (Sections 18-21 and 29)? For example, is it acceptable for a proposal to focus on just people with brain injury or just seniors? 

	
	Answer

	
	Yes.


	11
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 5, Section B (1)(d)
	Can you provide guidance on what is meant by "a new population"?  Does this mean for example a subset of one of the waiver populations, such as individuals with a disability and chronic disease? 

	
	Answer

	
	Refer to the amended language at the beginning of this document.


	12
	RFA Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Page 5, Section B(2)(a)
	If an applicant has a federal funding request pending, may they still apply under this RFA? 

	
	Answer

	
	The applicant may apply, but upon grant award, the allocation of funding shall not include duplicating or supplanting funding received from other federal or State resources.
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Amended Application Form 9/13/2022

State of Maine - Department of Health and Human Services

Office of Aging and Disability Services

RFA# 202208125

Home and Community Based Services (HCBS)

Innovation Grants Funding Opportunity



		General Instructions



		1. Applicants should be brief and concise in providing written information required in this application. 

2. Refer to “Submitting the Application” in the RFA for the application submission requirements. Incomplete applications will not be accepted.



		Submission Instructions



		Applications must be submitted as a single, typed, WORD file and must include the following items:

· Application Cover Page (Appendix A)

· Debarment, Performance and Non-Collusion Certification (Appendix B) 

· Home and Community Based Services (HCBS) Innovation Grant Funding Opportunity Application (Appendix C) and all related documents:

· Part V - Budget Form

· Part V - Budget Narrative

· Valid certificate of insurance on a standard ACORD form (or the equivalent) evidencing the Applicant’s general liability, professional liability and any other relevant liability insurance policies that might be associated with the services provided as a result of this RFA.

· A list of all current litigation in which the Applicant is named and a list of all closed cases that have closed within the past five (5) years in which the Applicant paid the claimant either as part of a settlement or by decree.  For each, list the entity bringing suit, the complaint, the accusation, amount, and outcome. If no litigation has occurred, write “none” on the submitted attachment.







I. ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS 



		Applicant’s Organization:



		



		2. Is the Applicant’s organization incorporated and registered with the Maine Secretary of State and capable of doing business in the State?

Explain:

		Yes ☐    No ☐



		







		a. In addition, Applicants must provide evidence of two (2) years’ experience providing supports to the populations served by HCBS Waivers, specifically, Section 21 (MaineCare Manual 21.05-1), Section 29 (29.05-01), Section 19 (19.04-1 to 3), Section 18 (18.05-1) and Section 20 (20.05-1).

Describe which Waiver population(s) and the time period the Applicant has such experience: 



		







		3. [bookmark: _Hlk109986774]Is the Applicant’s organization in good standing as a service provider with Department (i.e., has no corrective actions or sanctions, is not under investigation for violation of Maine laws/regulations, or has not violated State or Federal laws/regulations)? 

Explain:

		Yes ☐    No ☐



		





		4. [bookmark: _Hlk109986812]The organization is current and in good standing with all Maine State payroll taxes, sales taxes, and state income taxes (as applicable) at the time of submission and has not filed for bankruptcy within the past five (5) years.

Explain:

		Yes ☐    No ☐



		











II. PRIORITY CATEGORIES



		1. Will services be provided in under-served areas of the State? 

Describe:

		Yes ☐    No ☐



		









III. PROPOSED PROJECT ACTIVITIES



		1. If the Applicant will have partners to support the delivery of the innovative services to clients provide each partner’s name and contact information:



		



		2. Describe the Applicant’s capacity, expertise, and previous experience and how it will benefit the proposed project.



		



		3. Provide an outline of the proposed project, including the tasks and deliverables, project timeline, and roles and responsibilities of project staff.  



		



		4. Describe the implementation strategy(ies).



		



		5. Describe the anticipated expected outcomes of the grant activities.



		



		6. What is the problem that is being addressed by this project?



		



		7. What are the project objectives and intended outcomes?



		



		8. Describe the target waiver member population of this program.



		



		9. Estimate the total number of waiver members expected to be served by the project.



		



		10. What are the program’s measurable objectives?



		



		11. What metrics will be used to evaluate the outcomes of the project?



		



		12. Describe how the project will comply with the HCBS Global rule, and all rules and regulations of OMS and CMS?



		



		13. What resources are available to the project in terms of staff, money, space, time, partnerships, etc.?



		



		14. What activities are being undertaken (or planned) to achieve the outcomes?  Please provide a timeline for the proposed activities.



		



		15. What products (i.e., materials, units of services delivered) produced by this project are expected to be eligible and integrated into MaineCare service delivery, and qualify for MaineCare reimbursement?



		



		16. Provide a plan for sustaining the project outputs with HCBS reimbursement after the project is complete?



		









IV. BUDGET FORM



		Budget Form 



		Instructions: The Applicant must complete and submit a budget form(s) providing a breakdown of expenses for the entire period of performance as described in this RFA. 



The Budget Form may be obtained in an Excel (.xlsx) format and Budget Instructions may be obtained in a PDF (.pdf) format by double clicking on the document icons below.









		Budget Narrative Form



		Budget Narrative Instructions: The Applicant must include a budget narrative to explain the basis for determining the expenses submitted on the budget form. Provide a brief explanation/justification for each line item listed on the budget form. 



The Budget Narrative Form may be obtained in a Word (.docx) format by double clicking on the document icon above.  
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Budget Form.xlsx

NOTES


			BUDGET FORM INSTRUCTIONS


			Each Applicant submitting an application must submit a Award Proposal for each application.





			Do not add any Cost Categories.


			If you do not have any costs associated to a category, please enter "0".


			The Award Proposal is dependent on the Period of Performance listed in the RFA.





			The Award Proposal Amount in the Award Proposal spreadsheet will calculate automatically from the information provided. If The Excel spreadsheet is not used, please ensure the math is correctly calculated.





			Once you have completed your Award Proposal and double-checked that the Total RFA Costs on the summary spreadsheet match those of the amount indicated under Award Proposal Amount, save this file as your "Budget Form."  A separate "Budget Narrative" is also required.  





			The details of the Budget Narrative must match exactly to the numbers entered in the Budget Form.











AWARD PROPOSAL


			State of Maine 
Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Aging and Disability Services
BUDGET FORM
RFA# (Inserted by Purchases when assigned/approved)
Home and Community Based Services (HCBS) Innovation Grants Funding Opportunity


			APPLICANT ORGANIZATION NAME





			 Period of Performance
 (insert period of performance dates)


			REQUESTED AWARD AMOUNT			$   - 0





			COST CATEGORIES			PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE


			1. Direct Program Personnel Salaries			$   - 0


			2. Direct Program  Personnel Fringe Benefits			$   - 0


			3. Occupancy (Including depreciation, interest and/or rent if applicable)			$   - 0


			4. Training / Education			$   - 0


			5. Travel			$   - 0


			6.  Equipment			$   - 0


			7.  Supplies			$   - 0


			8.  Subcontractors			$   - 0


			9.  Consultants			$   - 0


			10.  Other 			$   - 0


			Total Direct Costs			$   - 0


			11. Indirect Costs			$   - 0


			12. Startup Costs			$   - 0


			TOTAL PROPOSED COSTS			$   - 0
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Budget Narrative Form.docx

State of Maine 


Department of Health and Human Services


Office of Aging and Disability Services


BUDGET NARRATIVE FORM


RFA# (Inserted by Purchases when assigned/approved)


Home and Community Based Services (HCBS) Innovation Grants Funding Opportunity





Form Instructions:  Applicants must complete a separate budget narrative for each application being submitted.  The Budget Narrative must match exactly to the numbers entered in the Budget Form submitted.  





			Applicant Organization Name:


			





			Requested Funding Amount (cell B5 in Award Proposal):


			$





			Period of Performance Start Date:


			


			End Date:


			





			1. Direct Program Personnel Salaries: 


Provide a description of effort/rate for each position dedicated to the program project (Budget Form cell B8)


Add more rows as necessary to fully detail personnel expenses.  





			Position Title


			Duties/Credential (e.g., MHRT II, LCSW


			Total Annual Salary


			Total # Hours Spend on Program 


			Total Direct Program Salary 





			


			


			$


			


			$





			


			


			$


			


			$





			


			


			$


			


			$





			


			


			$


			


			$





			


			


			$


			


			$





			Total Direct Program Personnel Salary


			$





			2. Direct Program Personnel Fringe Benefits:


Fringe benefits typically include FICA & Medicare Tax, Unemployment insurance, Workers’ Compensation Insurance, Health/Dental, Pension, and / or other items.  Indicate the fringe rate that applies to all individuals identified in the Direct Program Personnel Salaries. 





			Total Direct Program Personnel Fringe Benefits, expressed as a % and dollar amount of Direct Program Personnel/Salaries (Budget Form cell B9)


Explanation:


			%





			


			$





			





			3. Occupancy (Including depreciation, interest and /or rent if applicable):


Occupancy Depreciation: Enter the projected depreciation on agency-owned real property used by this specific program or service resulting from this RFA.  If you enter a depreciation amount, provide the agency’s total depreciation schedule with the budget forms.  The depreciation schedule should include the acquisition date, the acquisition amount, accumulated depreciation, current depreciation, and the net book value. 





Occupancy Interest: Enter the amount of mortgage interest projected for the period based on real property acquired after September 29, 1995.  For interest on real property acquired on or before September 29, 1995, include the letter of approval form provided by the federal funding source when the acquisition was approved.





Occupancy Rent: Enter the amount of rent or lease expense on real property that relates directly to the specific program or service resulting from this RFA.  Provide the physical address, the name of the landlord and the annual rent by address.  Related party transactions must be disclosed.





			Total Occupancy (including depreciation, interest, and/or rent, as applicable) (Budget Form cell B10)


Explanation:


			$





			





			4. Training / Education: 


Enter the projected expense for staff Training / Education.  Provide a quantified, brief explanation of this expense indicating the number of employees or others to be trained, purpose of training and location of training.





			Total Training/ Education (Budget Form cell B11)


Explanation:


			$





			





			5. Travel:


For the period of performance, indicate the projected travel expense required, such as attending trainings.  Indicate the purpose of the travel and, as appropriate, detail mileage, accommodations, etc. expenses.  (The current State allowable mileage reimbursement is $0.44 per mile).  Please note, out of state travel using DHHS funds will require prior approval by the Department. 





			Total Travel funds requested in Period of Performance (Budget Form cell B12)


Explanation:


			$





			





			6. Equipment:


According to 2 CFR 200 and/or federal OMB Circular A-122, Appendix B, #15: Equipment means an article of non-expendable, tangible personal property having a useful life of more than one year and an acquisition cost which equals or exceeds the lesser of (a) the capitalization level established by the organization for the financial statement purposes, or (b) $5,000.  





Note: When capital equipment purchases are included in the proposal, the capitalization policy of the provider must be submitted with this package.





			Total Equipment (Budget Form cell B13)


Explanation:


			$





			





			7. Supplies:


This category generally includes office supplies, postage, non-capitalized equipment, and other purchases necessary to provide direct services under the contract resulting from this RFA.





			Total Supplies (Budget Form cell B14)


Explanation:


			$





			





			8. Subcontractors: 


All subcontract costs must be specified here, including names of subcontractors (if known).  If awarded, no work may be subcontracted without written consent of DHHS. 





			Total Subcontractor (Budget Form cell B15)


Explanation:


			$





			





			9. Consultants: 


All consultant expenses associated with any person or organization providing non-clinical, consultative services to the program, including names of consultants (if known).  





			Total Consultants. (Budget Form cell B16)


Explanation:


			$





			





			10. Other:  


Other costs that are not included in any other category may be included in this section.  A quantified breakdown by category of expense is required for any component exceeding $1,000 in Other.  List each item, identify the expense amount, and provide explanation. 





			Total Other (cell B17 in Award Proposal)


Explanation:


			$





			





			16. Indirect Costs:


Indicate the indirect rate for the Applicant and to which budget line items the indirect rate applies.


If applicable, a copy of the current, approved indirect-cost agreement with the federal government must be included. 





			Total indirect funds (cell B19 in Award Proposal)


Explanation:


			$





			





			17. Startup Costs:


Startup costs are typically incurred before income or other benefits from the project are realized and are incurred only if the project or plan is implemented.  List each item, identify the expense amount, and provide explanation. 





			Total Startup costs (cell B20 in Award Proposal)


Explanation:


			$
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